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Florida Healthy Kids Corporation  
Request for Proposals 2019-02 

for 
Paid Advertising Campaign  

(Florida Healthy Kids Full-Pay Insurance Plan) 

ADDENDUM 1 
September 13, 2019 

Addendum 1 (“Addendum”) to Request for Proposals (“RFP”) 2019-02 is as follows: 

1. Item 1 on Page 16 of the RFP is hereby amended in its entirety as follows:

1. Strategy and Overall Objectives

• Does the Respondent provide a clear, detailed budget inclusive of all fees and
paid advertising tactics and clearly demonstrate how Respondent’s paid
advertising strategy is advantageous to and in the best interest of the
Corporation in order to achieve the campaign objectives? (5 total points
available.)

• Does the Respondent clearly define its paid advertising campaign strategy
tactic(s) (e.g., digital, radio, television, outdoor or others) and provide a clear plan
of action on how to execute that strategy? (10 total points available. This item is
scored 0-5, and the score will be multiplied by 2.)

• Is there a thorough explanation of why the specific advertising tactics were
chosen and how they will provide greater awareness and promotion of the
changes to the Florida Healthy Kids full-pay plan to increase the number of
completed applications? (20 total points available. This item is scored 0-5, and
the score will be multiplied by 4.)

• Does the campaign strategy contain value-added placements or bonus matches
to the advertising dollars being spent for each tactic(s) proposed? (5 total points
available.)
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• Does the campaign strategy focus paid advertising tactics on targeted
populations with a large number of uninsured children in Florida (see uninsured
data by county, enrollment, program and plan at www.healthykids.org/data/) and
does it provide geographic or demographic data to illustrate this reasoning? (15
total points available. This item is scored 0-5, and the score will be multiplied by
3.)

2. Item 3 on Page 17 of the RFP is hereby amended in its entirety as follows:

3. Reporting & Tracking

• Does the campaign strategy define proposed performance metrics for each paid
advertising tactic and detail how those metrics will be captured, tracked and
reported throughout the campaign? (10 total points available. This item is scored
0-5, and the score will be multiplied by 2.)

• For each paid advertising tactic proposed, does the Respondent clearly define
how impressions, clicks, application starts, application completions and/or other
performance metrics will increase enrollment in the Florida Healthy Kids full-pay
plan? (10 total points available. This item is scored 0-5, and the score will be
multiplied by 2.)

• Does the campaign strategy provide a detailed summary of how campaign
success will be measured and reported to the Corporation using Tableau, Excel
or other similar data-driven mechanisms? (5 total points available)

3. Paragraph 4 in Section 2.A. of the RFP is hereby amended to read, “Value-added bonus
placements or matches are requested to maximize FHKC’s spend on this campaign.”

4. FHKC’s answers to Respondents’ questions are located below beginning on page 3 of
this Addendum.

5. This Addendum supersedes any previous written or oral RFP specifications, instructions,
or information.
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

1 RFP 2 A.6 9 You indicated the budget is 
$350,000 with an allotment of 
$35,000 for admin fees plus 
another 10% for additional 
fees? Can you clarify that 
exactly? 

A maximum of 10% of the total project amount 
($35,000) may be charged for administrative 
fees. An additional amount not to exceed 10% of 
the cumulative direct advertising costs may be 
charged as commission. 

2 RFP 1.A. 

2.A. 

3 

7 

Confirming that the scope of 
the RFP is for an agency 
partner to strategically develop 
and execute the media plan 
and media buy/reconciliation, 
etc. or are you looking for 
specific media vendors and/or 
partners to be placing with 
directly?  
 

 

A firm may submit a proposal and complete the 
media buying/placement, optimization, reporting, 
etc. for the proposed paid advertising tactics OR 
direct media companies (such as television, 
radio, outdoor, etc.) may submit direct proposals 
for their specific paid advertising services. 

3 RFP 2. A.5c 9 On page 9, section 5 c., you 
requested vendor information. 
Should we plan to include 
media vendors, such as out-of-
home, broadcast, radio, etc. 
that we plan to engage as part 
of the buy or are you 
specifically looking for sub-

Subcontractor information is specifically 
requested.  
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

contractor information on that 
section? 

4 RFP N/A N/A Are you currently working with 
a creative agency/Agency on 
Record (AOR) to develop the 
creative campaign or is that 
within the scope of this RFP? 

The Corporation currently has a public relations 
Agency of Record. As stated in Section 2.A. of 
the RFP, Respondents will not design creative 
materials (brochures, digital advertisements, 
billboard designs, etc.) for their paid advertising 
campaign strategy. 

5 RFP N/A N/A Is the AOR strictly a creative 
shop and that’s why they are 
not performing the media 
allocation or are you contracted 
with another media agency that 
is part of this RFP or 
defending? 

The Agency of Record is a full-service 
communications firm.  

6 RFP 2. A.7 9 On page 9, section 7, where 
you ask for Respondents to 
provide all documentation 
necessary to support a 
proposed paid strategy. If there 
is any additional context, or 
color or texture, you could add 
to the types of documentation 

The documentation should demonstrate the 
reason a Respondent considers its proposal to 
be the most advantageous to or in the best 
interest of the Corporation. 



5 
 

# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

you are looking for, that would 
be helpful as well. 

7 RFP 2 A.7 9 On page 9, section 7, about the 
relevant letters of reference. 
Can you share whether you 
were looking for a full letter of 
recommendation or more of a 
quote, testimonial or verbatim? 

Respondents shall provide letters of reference 
from previous marketing/advertising campaigns 
that demonstrate prior experience promoting the 
subject matter of this RFP. Emphasis should be 
placed on the completeness of the 
demonstration of previous experience. 

8 RFP 1 D. 4-5 Do you have any information 
that you can share on the 
demographics and break-out of 
both English, Hispanic and 
different sub-groups there that 
you are trying to target and if 
you have any priorities among 
those groups for your services? 

Refer to Section 1.D. of the RFP for 
demographic information. 

9 RFP 4. B.  16 I had a question about page 16, 
section b, the evaluation 
criteria. It looks like it’s going to 
be a total universe of 100 
points, but I think 95 total points 
are outlined in red on pages 16 
and 17. I believe there are 10 
points supposed to be reflected 

Refer to paragraph 2 of this Addendum. 
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

as available for reporting and 
tracking on bullet #2, instead of 
the five points. Perhaps that 
can be clarified. 

10 RFP 2. A.7 9 On page 9, section 7, regarding 
the relevant letters from 
previous marketing campaigns. 
You listed some examples of 
health insurance, Florida 
KidCare. Would it be relevant 
and acceptable to have that 
type of information from health 
care in general or do you need 
those specific verbals? 

FHKC will review all letters of reference deemed 
relevant by the Respondent. 

11 RFP 2. A 

2.A.5b 

B.1 

9 

9 

16 

For added-value placements, is 
there a baseline expectation for 
the value-add dollar amount or, 
if not, how will that range of 0-5 
points be determined? 

No baseline expectation has been set. Refer to 
Section 4.B. of the RFP and paragraph 1 of this 
Addendum regarding the scoring of value-add 
placements. 

12 RFP 2.A. 7 Is there a specific allocation 
that you are looking for in terms 
of the platform being used, for 
example, what percent of the 
marketing should be traditional 
media vs. digital media vs. 

No. 
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

outdoor vs. radio vs. all 
different types of platforms? 

13 RFP 2.A 

2.A.5b. 

4.B.1 

9 

9 

16 

Will the project budget be 
evaluated and, if so, how many 
points? I didn’t see that in the 
100-point criteria and just 
wanted to confirm. 

Refer to paragraph 1 of this Addendum. 

14 RFP 1.D. 5 On page 5, you mention that a 
potential target that would 
make sense here is children 
currently insured with a parent 
employer-sponsored health 
insurance. This would be a 
cheaper alternative for them. Is 
there going to be any outreach 
on your part with employers to 
go through that or would 
families have to be aware 
separately that this exists in 
order to enroll? Is there going 
to be a workforce type of an 
opportunity there or is it only 
going to be outside of that? 

The Corporation conducts outreach initiatives to 
employers. 
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

15 RFP 2.A.6 9 Can you elaborate on the 10% 
administrative fee versus the 
10% commission? Can those 
be combined meaning you 
have a 20% management fee 
on some of the ad spend or the 
max management fee for the 
agency is 10%? 

See response to question 1.  

16 RFP 1.D. 5 On page 5, there seemed to be 
a large emphasis on the 
counties with the greatest 
concentration of uninsured 
children; however, knowing this 
campaign might need to reach 
a target audience that have 
insurance elsewhere. Are we 
required to stay within those 
five counties or emphasize 
them or are you open to other 
strategies? 

Respondents are not required to focus their paid 
advertising campaign strategies solely in the top 
five counties with the highest numbers of 
uninsured children. Respondents can choose to 
do so, or they can choose to focus on any 
combination of Florida counties. 

17 RFP 4 & 5 17-18 On page 18, it says the award 
will go to the Respondent 
whose paid advertising strategy 
received the highest overall 
score. Can you confirm it will be 
based on that total 100 points 

Confirmed. 
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

and not just the strategy 
section? 

18 RFP 1.D. 5 You mentioned there are five 
counties that have the highest 
concentration of uninsured 
children and I am wondering 
whether you have experience 
recruiting and working in those 
areas more extensively and if 
those are more challenging 
areas systemically? Or if you 
would consider those to be 
prime prospects on par with 
any of the other business 
opportunities? 

Yes, the Corporation has previous marketing 
and community outreach experience in the five 
counties with the highest numbers of uninsured 
children. As other counties have fewer numbers 
of uninsured children, which are a key target 
demographic for the Corporation, these five 
counties represent a significant opportunity for 
increased enrollment. 

19 RFP; draft 
contract 

1.D. 

4-1.E. - 
Appendix 4 

5 

22 

How would you define success 
when the campaign is all done 
and complete and you look at 
the metrics, how do you know it 
is a success?   

Refer to the first paragraph of Section 1.D. of 
the RFP and Section 4-1.E. of Appendix 4. 
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

20 RFP 4.A. 15 On page 15, section A, I 
believe I interpreted this 
correctly, but just wanted to 
confirm. If you put two 
strategies forward and one’s 
maybe out of the box. It won’t 
hurt you, because you are only 
going to take the strongest 
forward per your calculations 
and throw out the lesser 
strategy that you didn’t like as 
much. Is that correct? 

Correct.  

21 RFP 2.A. 7 Will you be providing a 
comprehensive list of the types 
of creative we will be receiving 
in order to appropriately inform 
us as to what types of 
strategies we should employ 
with that creative? 

A wide array of campaign creative will be 
available, to include: a campaign landing page, 
static graphics (sized as necessary for digital, 
outdoor and/or direct mail advertisements, etc.), 
video for social/digital advertisements, etc. 
Additional variations of campaign creative 
designs will be created on an as-needed basis 
to support the winning paid advertising strategy. 

22 RFP 1.A. 

 

 

 

1.A. 

3 

 

 

 

3 

A. Does the size of the 
company bidding play a role in 
the chances of winning the 
award?  

 

B. So, is this purely based on 
just the strategy? It doesn’t 

A. No. 

 

 

B. Refer to Section 4 of the RFP for the 
evaluation criteria. 
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

4 15 matter if a company only has 
five employees and is a smaller 
agency? 

23 RFP; draft 
contract 

Appendix 4 22 In terms of billing, is the agency 
responsible for buying the 
media upfront and having 
Florida Healthy Kids reimburse 
or would you have direct 
payment set up ahead of time? 

Refer to Section 3 of Appendix 4. 

24 RFP 1.A. 3 I know the effective date of the 
new health plans is January 
1st. What is the earliest that 
someone could enroll for that 
plan? 

The Florida KidCare application is open year-
round. Parents can apply and enroll their 
children in coverage anytime. The application 
process typically takes 4-6 weeks. 

25 RFP N/A N/A Is there an incumbent for this 
work and, if so, can you provide 
us with who that is? 

The Corporation’s Agency of Record is The 
Moore Agency. There is no incumbent for this 
specific full-pay campaign as this plan offering 
has never been offered before. 

 

26 RFP 1.E. 6 Given that the contract will be 
awarded on the 27th and you 
have an implementation of the 
30th. Is there any leeway to 
having those tactics start later? 

The contract is anticipated to be signed by 
September 30, 2019.  Paid advertising tactics 
are not anticipated to “go live” on that date. 
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

27 RFP 2.A. 7 A general assumption that any 
lead-based conversion 
activities online are going to be 
handled at FloridaKidCare.org. 
Is there going to be any need to 
be developing any specific 
splash pages or landing pages 
around these campaigns as 
part of this scope or is it in 
place already? 

The AOR will be responsible for the creation of 
all creative elements. 

28 RFP 2.A. 7 What is the expected date for 
the creative release? 

The creative will be made available to the 
successful Respondent to this RFP. 

29 RFP 2.A. 7 In addition to the creative 
release, will you also be 
providing any feedback 
regarding the effectiveness or 
changes you require or look for 
from previous media schedules, 
whether that be channel 
preferences, or anything that 
happened previously that you 
would like to see changed or 
improved? 

Information regarding the Corporation’s previous 
advertising efforts will be made available to the 
successful Respondent to this RFP. 
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

30 RFP 2.A.6 

2.A.5.c 

9 

 

A. Question regarding the 
project budget. You mention on 
page 9, section 6, that you want 
a detailed budget for the 
advertising campaign. Can you 
expand on that as far as, for 
instance, if we were 
recommending television? Are 
you looking for specific 
programming, x number of 
spots and how we would 
specifically spend that budget? 

 

B. Secondarily, when you ask 
for identification of any vendors 
on the same page, section 5 c., 
are we including any media 
outlets as well in that section or 
just sub-contractors who might 
be working in addition to our 
agency? 

A. Refer to paragraph 1 of this Addendum. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B. See response to question 3. 

31 RFP 2.A.7 9 In Section A 7 of Section 2 
Proposal Requirements, 
"Respondent Appendices," the 
document states that 
"Respondents must also 
include relevant letters of 

See response to question 10. 
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

references from previous 
marketing/advertising 
campaigns that demonstrate 
prior experience promoting the 
subject matter of this RFP. 
Question: Does the 
marketing/advertising 
experience need to be in 
insurance specifically or would 
experience in healthcare 
suffice?  

32 RFP N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

A. When was the last time you 
executed this campaign? Do 
you have any past results you 
can show us (such as a recap 
report of metrics?) We need 
this information to know what 
they consider successful.

B. Which media did you use in 
the past to deliver results?
(radio, tv, paid search, paid 
social, display advertising, 
etc.?)

A. This campaign has never been executed. 
This is a new full-pay plan that has never been 
offered before.

B. The Corporation has previously advertised 
other campaigns across multiple tactics, 
including paid search, paid social, digital display 
and banner, television, radio, and outdoor 
advertising. Historically, social/digital tactics 
have proven the most successful in securing 
completed applications.
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

1.D. 4-5
C. What is the exact # of
completed applications you are
looking for?

C. Key performance metrics, including
application numbers, will be determined post-
award and will be tailored to the specific paid
advertising tactics contained in the winning paid
advertising strategy.

33 Miscellaneous 2.E.

3.A.

5-6

10

Is the teleconference recording 
available to respondents? If so, 
how is it accessed?  

The teleconference recording will be available 
post-award. This Addendum should be 
considered the official response to all inquiries. 

34 Miscellaneous 2.E.

3.A.

5-6

10

Can you please provide a list of 
those who attended the pre-bid 
teleconference? 

FHKC does not have a full and complete list of 
those who attended the teleconference. 

35 RFP 2.A.6 9 Page 9, item 6 can you confirm 
the entire value of all admin 
fees, commission and ad buy 
should not exceed $350,000?  

Confirmed. 

36 RFP 2.A.5.c. 9 Page 9, section 5c requests 
vendor information. Should this 
include media vendors, such as 
out of home, broadcast radio/tv, 
digital media etc. vendors that 

See response to question 29-B. 



16 
 

# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

we anticipate we will engage to 
place the buy?  

37 RFP 2.A.7 9 Page 9, section 7 requires 
respondents to provide all 
documentation necessary to 
support the proposed paid 
strategies. Please expand on 
the type of documentation 
required.   

See response to question 6. 

38 RFP 2.A.7 9 Page 9, section 7 requires 
relevant letters of reference.   

A. How many reference letters 
are required?   

 
B. Should respondents supply a 
full letter, or will a 
quote/verbatim/ testimonial 
suffice?   

 

 

A.  There is no stated limit. 

 

 

B. See response to question 7.  
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

39 RFP 4.B. 16-17 Page 16, section B outlines 
evaluation criteria. Can the 
following additional detail be 
provided:   

A. 95 total points are outlined in 
red on pages 16-17. We 
believe there is a total of 10 
points available for reporting 
and tracking, bullet #2 though 
only 5 are listed. Please 
confirm the breakout of the 100 
points available.   

 

B. For value-added 
placements, is there a baseline 
expectation for value-add 
placements in dollar amount? If 
not, how will the range of 0-5 
points be determined?  

 

C. Will the project budget be 
evaluated? If so, how many 
points will be available?  

 

 

 

A. See response to question 9 and paragraph 2 
of this Addendum. 

 

 

 

 

 

B. See response to question 11. 

 

 

 

 

C. See response to question 13. 
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

40 RFP 4-5 17-18 Page 18, it says the award will 
go to the Respondent whose 
paid advertising campaign 
strategy received the highest 
overall score. Can you confirm 
it will be based on the total 
score out of 100, and not just 
the strategy section? 

Confirmed. 

41 RFP 1.D. 5 Page 5, there seems to be a 
large emphasis on the counties 
with the greatest concentration 
of uninsured children. However, 
for this campaign, it seems one 
of the target audiences is those 
who may have insurance 
elsewhere. Are we required to 
emphasize the five counties 
listed? 

See response to question 16.  

42 RFP 4.A. 15-16 Page 15 section A, can you 
confirm if two strategies are put 
forward, and one is very out of 
the box, it will not hurt the score 
as only strongest will be used in 
calculation? 

See response to question 20. 
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

43 RFP N/A N/A Would the winning firm be 
precluded from participating in 
any other future RFPs issued or 
work if selected to place 
advertising for this campaign? 

No. 

44 RFP 2.A. 7 Is this a new contract or 
contract renewal? 

This is a new contract.  

45 RFP N/A N/A What is the name of the 
previous (or current) firm that 
has placed advertising for 
FHKC? 

The Moore Agency. 

46 RFP, draft 
contract 

4-3 – 
Appendix 4 

25 Subcontractor use. “Vendor 
may delegate performance of 
work required under this 
Contract to subcontractors with 
prior written approval from 
FHKC” - Does one need that 
written approval for the 
proposal or after the vendor 
has been selected? 

After the selection of the successful Respondent 
to this RFP. 
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

47 RFP 2.A.7 9 May we list references with 
contact information (cell and 
email)? 

Yes. 

48 RFP 1.D. 4-5 The primary goal of the paid 
advertising campaign will be to 
raise awareness of these 
changes and attract new 
members into the program 
during the campaign timeframe. 
However, the RFP mentions 
that 15,500 current members 
will be "impacted" by these 
changes. Therefore, do the 
current members need to be 
addressed in our marketing 
plan? 

No. Current members do not need to be 
addressed in the marketing plan. 

49 Miscellaneous 1.C. 3-4 Are there any criteria that make 
a family ineligible? 

Refer to  
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/ 
 

Refer to 
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/Flo
rida_KidCare_Income_Guidelines.pdf 

 

https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/Florida_KidCare_Income_Guidelines.pdf
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/Florida_KidCare_Income_Guidelines.pdf
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/Florida_KidCare_Income_Guidelines.pdf
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/Florida_KidCare_Income_Guidelines.pdf
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# Document 
(e.g., RFP, 
Proposed 
Contract 

Document 
Section 

Document 
Page # 

Question Answer 

50 Miscellaneous 1.C. 3-4 What is the criteria to determine 
the monthly premiums? 

Household size and annual gross household 
income are the primary determinants of an 
applicant’s monthly premium. 

 

Refer to 
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/Flo
rida_KidCare_Income_Guidelines.pdf 

 

Monthly premiums costs are established by the 
FHKC Board of Directors. 

 

Any party that has standing to challenge an FHKC Intended Decision as reflected in the issuance of specifications in this 
procurement or in any addenda must file a written notice of intent to protest, formal written protest, and the protest bond as set forth 
in Appendix 6 of this Request for Proposals. Failure to file a notice of intent to protest, formal written protest, or the protest bond 
within the time prescribed in this Request for Proposals shall constitute a waiver of proceedings. The notice of intent protest, formal 
written protest, and protest bond must be timely filed with the FHKC Issuing Manager at: connect@healthykids.org and/or 1203 
Governors Square Boulevard, Ste. 400, Tallahassee, FL 32301. 

https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/Florida_KidCare_Income_Guidelines.pdf
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/Florida_KidCare_Income_Guidelines.pdf
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/Florida_KidCare_Income_Guidelines.pdf
https://www.healthykids.org/kidcare/eligibility/Florida_KidCare_Income_Guidelines.pdf
mailto:connect@healthykids.org
mailto:connect@healthykids.org

